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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Eagle Pass, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Eagle
Pass, Texas (the "City") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2010, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit.
w

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opmions.
In, our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business~type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Eagle Pass, Texas as of
September 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 24,
2011 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

115 E. TRAVIS

SUITE

1400

SAN

ANTONIO, TEXAS 78205 (21O) 277-1898

Fax (21O) 277-1848

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 12, Budgetary Comparison Information
for the General Fund on page 64 and Schedule of Funding Progress on page 65 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Govenunental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential pan of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opmlOns on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Eagle Pass, Texas' financial statements as a whole. The
introductory section is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by u.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits o/States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State
of Texas Single Audit Circular and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material. respects in relation to the financial statements
as· a whole. The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on it.

{!~!=:~~)Lf-fJ
Certified Public Accountants
San Antonio, Texas
March 24, 2011
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Management's
Discussion and Analysis

Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A)
On behalf of the City of Eagle Pass' management team, we are pleased to provide an overview of
the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30. 2010. The intended
purpose of this MD&A is to provide an introduction to the basic financial statements and notes to
the financial statements in an easy to read format, analyzing our financial activities and which will
help to determine if the City's fmancial position has improved or deteriorated over the past year.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. which can be found on pages i~v of
this report. When referring to prior year data in this analysis. we included information from last
years' audited financial reports.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Government-wide
•

The net assets of the City of Eagle Pass exceeded its liabilities by $148 million, an
increase of $7.2 million from last year. Governmental activities contributed $75
thousand and the business-type activities contributed $7 million to the overaJi
Increase.

Fund Level

•

The Governmental Funds report a combined deficiency of revenues over
expenditures of $(5.4) million of which $(4.0) deficiency revenue over expenditures
is in the General Fund, $(1.4) million is in the other governmental funds. The
deficiency in the other governmental funds is financed by a fund balance of $4.9
million.

•

The City's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $13.6 million,
an increase of $4.9 million from last fiscal year. Within the combined fund balance
total, $4.6 million is umeserved, $2.7 million is unreserved but designated, and the
remainder $6.3 million is reserved for specific purposes.

•

The General Fund reported a fund balance of $4.7 million. An increase from last
year of $.8 million. The unreserved balance is $4.6 million of which $.44 thousand
was reserved for inventories. The total fund balance represents 31.69% of General
Fund expenditures and other financing uses for the fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This annual report consists of four parts (I) Management's Discussion and Analysis (this
section), (2) the basic financial statements, (3) required supplementary infonnation, and (4) an
optional section that presents combining statements for non-major Enterprise Funds and
Internal Service Funds. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the City:
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•

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both
long-term and short-term information about the City's overall financial status.

•

The remaining statements are ftmd financial statements that focus on individual parts
of City government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the
financial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section
of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in
the financial statements. Figure A-I shows how the required parts of this annual report are
arranged and relate to one another. In addition to these required statements, we have included
a section with combining statements that provide details about our non-major Enterprise
Funds and Internal Service Funds, each of which are added together and presented in single
columns in the basic financial statements.
Figure A-l
Required Components of

City of Eagle Pass's Annual Financial Reports
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Below is a summary of the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion
of the City's government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of
the overview section of Management's Discussion and Analysis explains the structure and
contents of each of the statements.
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement ofnet assets includes
all of the government's assets (what the City owns) and liabilities (what the City owes). All of the
4

current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statements ofactivities regardless of
when cash is received or paid, that is on the accrual basis.
The two government-wide statements (stQtement ofnet assets and statements ofactivities) report the City's
net assets and how they have changed during the year. Net assets, the difference between the
City's assets and liabilities is one way to measure the City's financial health, or position.
•

Over time, increase or decrease in the City's net assets is an indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

•

To assess the overall health of the City one needs to consider additional non-financial factors
such as changes in the City's propelty tax base, level of economy, especially the local one,
and international bridge crossings.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories:

•

Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are included here, such as
general government, health and welfare, public safety, highways and streets, culture and
recreation, and economic development and assistance. Property taxes, sales taxes,
occupancy taxes, franchise taxes, state grants and transfers [rom business~type activities
and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

•

Business-type activities - The City charges fees to customers to cover the costs of certain
services it provides. The City's Water and Sewer System, International Bridge System,
Refuse Collection Operations and Landfill Operation are included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant
funds not the City as a whole. Funds are an accounting device that the City uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding and spending for those particular purposes.
•

Some funds are established because they are required by City Charter, state law and by
bond covenants.

•

The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
pmposes or show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants (like aid from the Texas
Water Development Board).

The City has tlrree kinds of funds:

•

Governmentalfunds- Most of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds,
which focus on (l) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash flow in and out; and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Consequently, the govermnental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that
helps one determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent
in the near future to finance the City's programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the governmental funds statement, a
5

reconciliation presented on the subsequent page that explains the relationship (of
differences) between the governmental fund statements and the government~wide
statements,
•

•

Proprietary funds- Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statement,
provide both long - and short~term financial information.
•

In fact, the City Enterprise Funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its
business-type activities, but provide more detail and additional infonnation, such as
cash flows.

•

The City uses an Internal Service Fund (the other kind of proprietary fund) to
report activities that provide supplies and services for the City's other programs
and activities - such as the City's Dental Services,

Fiduciary funds- The City's fiduciary funds consist of various Agency Funds. The City is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes, All of the City'S fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of
fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary assets. We exclude these
activities from the City'S governrnent~wide financial statements because the City cannot
use these assets to finance its operations; essentially they belong to somebody else,

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The City's combined

govemment~wide

net assets at year end were $148 million.

CITY OF EAGLE PASS' NET ASSETS
(in Thousands)
2010
Activities
Governmental Business-type

Total
2010

2009
Activities
Governmental Business-type

Current and other assets
capital assets
Total assets

S

18,591
34,824
53,415

$

19,389
146,388
165,777

$ 37,980
181,212
219,192

$

14,782
35,061
49,843

$

17,740
142,666
160,406

Long term liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

S

21,658
1,247
22,905

$

41,937
6,602
48,539

$ 63,595
7,849
71,444

$

17,725
1,684
19,409

$

44,863
5,385
50,248

105,141
8,228
3,869
117,236

118,306
17,175
12,266
S 147,747

Net assets:
Invested in cap~al assets,
net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

$

13,165
8,947
8,397
30,509

$

6

$

18,340
4,902
7,192
30,434

$

98,464
7,625
4,070
110,159

Total
2009

Total
Increase
(Decrease)

$ 32,522
177,727
210,249

S

5,458
3,485
8,943

$ 62,588
7,069
69,657

$

1,007

780

S

116,804
12,527
$ 11,262
$140,593

1,787

$

1,502
4,648
1,004
7,154

The City's combined change in net assets for the primary government increased $7.1 million
compared to the prior fiscal year. Governmental activities contributed $75 thousand of the increase
while the business-type activities contributed $7.1 million of the increase. The largest portion of
net assets represents the City's investment in capital assets, net of related debt. The second largest
portion of net assets represents restricted net assets, while the final component is unrestricted.

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010
(hI Thousands)

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants & Contrib
Capital Grants & Contrib
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Occupancy Tax
Franchise Taxes
Other Taxes
Penalty & Interest
Grants & Contrib not restricted
Investment Earnings
M iscclJaneous
Total Revenues
Expenses:
Primary Governmcnt:
Gen<::ral Government
Public Safety
Highway & Streets
Sanitation
Culture & Recreation
Bond Interest
Fiscal Agent Fees
Inssmmce Cost
Capital Outlays
Business-Typc Activities:
Water & Sewer System
International Bridge System
Refuse Collection System
Landfill Operations System
Total Expenses
Change In Nct Assets Bcfore Transf<
Transfers
Net Change in Net Assets
Beginning, Net Assets
Prior Period Adjustment
Ending, Nel Assets

Governmental
Activities

s

2,826
1,619

$

Business-Type
Activities
2010
2009

2,734
1,013

$

21,711
4,868

3,304
3,817
654

$

22,173
9,482

(9)

3,427
3,745
600
923
4
160
21

36
(82)
13,318

80

99

158

852
13,559

267
26,945

298
32,111

955
198

3,150
8,827
2,726
515
2,980

699
1
69

$

24,537
1,619
4,868
3,304
3,817
654

955
198
(9)

3,189
8,768
1,987

135
185
40,263

3,150
8,827
2,726
515
2,980

599
2,793
740
1

$

24,907
1,013
9,482
3,427
3,745
600
923
4
160
21
238
1,150
45,670

3,189
8,768
1,987

599

699

2,793
740

1

1

69

(351)

(351)

18,616
(5,298)
5,373
75

18,077
(4,518)
4,900
382

30,434

29,796

8,613
2,185
3,375
320
14,493
12,452
(5,373)
7,079
110,159

256
$ 30,509

Total Primary
Government
2010

$ 30,434

$117,238

7

8,363
2,450
3,570
300
14,683
17,428
(4,900)
12,528
97,039
592
$ 110,159

8,613
2,185
3,375
320
33,109
7,154

8,363
2,450
3,570
300
32,760
12,910

7,154

12,910

140,593

126,835

$ 147,747

$ 140,593

848

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Governmental Funds
Revenues from the City's govermnental funds were $13.9 million. The revenue was derived as indicated below.
(In thousands)

Property taxes

S

Sales taxes

2009

2010
3,663
3,818
654
955

Occupancy Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Other Taxes
Penalty & interest
Investment earnings

26% S

3,364

27%
5%
7%

3,745

605
923

0%

198
36

Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services

1,608
2,827

190

Miscellaneous
$

160
80

1%
0%
12%
20%
1%

1,013
2,754

519

I

13,949

26%
28%

S

5%
7%

Variance
299
73
40
32

0%
1%
1%
8%
21%
4%

38
(44)

595
7]
(329)
786

S

13,163

•

The adopted property tax rate for fiscal year 2009-2010 was at .03562 per $100 of valuation. An increase of
$.0109 from $.03453.

•

Property value increased $60 million to $1,059 million from the prior year's valuation of$998 million.

•

Sales tax revenues increased $73 to $3,818 from the prior year's sales tax revenues of$3,745.
This increase may be attributed to the more sales locally from an influx of Mexican nationals coming to the
U.S. side to shop.

•

Room occupancy tax increased $4910 $654 from the prior year's room occupancy tax 0£$605.
The increase in room tax is due to the number of new hotels that have opened during the year in our City.

•

The City transferred $5,373 from proprietary funds to governmental fund operations principally to the general
fund. The majority of the funds transferred to the general fund come from the International Bridge. these
funds also decreased compared to last year due to the decline in traffic due to the violence across the border.

Expenditures for the City's governmental funds, exclusive of principal payments, capital outlays and issuance costs,
were $18.9 million. Expenditures were incurred as indicated below,

(In thousands)

General government
Public safety
Highways & streets
Sanitation
Culture & recreation
Interest on long-term debt

S

2010
3,150
8,827
2,726

17% $
47%
14%
3%
16%
4%
$

515
2,980

699
$

18,897

2009
3,189
8,768
1,987

599
2,793
740
18,076

Variance
18%
49%
11%
3%
15%
4%

$

(39)

59
739
(84)

187
(41)

$

821

Monthly budget monitoring was conducted to assure compliance with budgetary constraints that result in a decrease
from the prior fiscal year.
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Business-Type Activities
Revenues of the City's business-type activities totaled $27 million as indicated below.
2010

(In thousands)

Program Revenue:
Charges for services
Capital grants and contributions

$

General Revenue:
Other operating revenues
Inveslment earnings

21,711
4,868
26,579
267

99

82% $
18%

73%
27%

$

22,173
9,482
31,655

70%
30%

$ (462)

298

65%
35%

(31)

158

366
Revenues

Variance

2009

(4,614)

(59)

456

26,945

$

32,11 [

•

The amount realized from charges for services for water was $5,954 which is a decrease of $624 from the prior
year charges for services of $6,577. Rates were increased during the year.

•

The amount realized from charges for services for sewage services was $3,615 which is an increase of $87 from
the prior year charges for services of$3,528.

•

The amount realized from charges for services for sanitation services was $4,035 which is an increase of $83
from the prior year charges for services of$3,952. Rates were increased.
The amount realized from the two international bridges for tolls was $8,106 which is a decrease of $8. Traffic
decline contributed to the slight decrease in revenue. Rates for weekends were increased. Increased security
operations continued at all ports of entry contributed to this decline.
Capital grants relate to the Regional Texas Water Development Project that is in its sixth year and nearing
completion in 2010.
Investment earnings decreased over the prior year as was expected due to the continued decline in the general
economy and certificate of deposits interest rates.

Expenses of the City's business-type activities totaled $14.6 million as indicated below.
(In thousands)
Water Works System
lnternalional Bridge System
Landfill Facility
Refuse Collection System

$

$

•

2010
8,613
2,136
321
3,375
14,445

60% $
15%
2%
23%
$

2009
8,363
2,402
300
3,570
14,635

57%
16%
2%
24%

Variance
250
(266)
21
(195)
$
(190)

$

The City transferred from the General Fund into the Landfill Facility $52 thousand, $321 thousand into the
Library and $202 thousand into the Recycling Fund. A total of $5.9 million was transferred to the General
Fund from the Water Works $175 thousand and Bridge Systems $5.1 million and $161 thousand from the
Refuse Collection System and $30 thousand from the Dental Selflnsurance Fund.
City staff monitors all Propriety Funds to ensure that operating expenses are maintained within budget levels
and that fund is not transferred in excess of limitations imposed by the City charter or bond covenants.
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General Fund Budgetary Activity
Over the course of the fiscal year, the City Council revised the City's budget a number of times. These amendments
were principally for:

•
•

•
•
•

Supplemental appropriations to revise the budget during the year ended September 20 10.
Amendments to appropriate funds held in reserve, if available.
Changes in appropriations for grants and related matching funds.
Increases or decreases in appropriations to authorize for any budget overruns.
Changes in the amount budget for transfer of funds from the General Fund to other funds.

As stated before the City monitors its budget to assure that anticipated revenues are realized and that expenditures
remain within budget authority. During the fiscal year the General Fund had a positive variance of $609 thousand on
the overall budgeted change in net assets. Total revenues contributed $646 thousand to the variance higher than
anticipated revenues, expenditures were less than budgeted and Ihus contributed a positive $371 thousand, total other
items experienced a negative $(408) thousand over anticipated budget items.

CAPITAL ASSETS and DEBT ADMINISTRAnON
Capital Assets (government-wide)

The City's combined capital assets at the end of the fiscal year, amounted to $181.2 million. It is
'the City's policy to capitalize only purchases of $5,000 or over. Items less than $5,000 are
expensed. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, machinery
and equipment, park facilities, streets, bridges and other infrastructure, including construction
work in progress, A more detail presentation is presented in the Notes to Financial Statements at
Note 3,

Capital Assets at Year-End
2010
Activities
GOVCnJlllclltal
BllsinCSS·lype

(ill Th<lllunds)

Land
Buildings
hnpr(lv'IS other lhan bldgs
Equipment
Infrastructure
Water & Sewer System
Bridge Sy.tem
L~ndfill Facility
Refuse Collection System
Construction in prog""s.
Less: aCCUIn. depredation
Total assets

$

1,377
2,700
13,181
11,590
20,679

(

$

,

1,976

,

T.otal
Activities
2010

2009
Activit;es
Bnslness_lype
Governmcntal

3,353 S
2,700
13,181
11,590
20,679
48,211
29,389
1,225
3,076

\2,995

48.211
29,389
1,225
3,076
95,408

108,403

21,698) (

32,897)

(60.595)

34,824 $

146,388 $

l81,212 $
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1,377 S
2,700
13,121
11,289
20,679

11,867
(

25,972) (
35,061 $

1,976 S

47,656
29,369
1,225
3,037
89,963
30,561)
t42,665 $

Total
Activities
2009
3,353
2,700
13,121
11,289
20,679
47,656
29,369
1,225
3,037
101,830
(56,533)
177,726

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had debt of $63.3 million. An increase of $1 million from
last year as detailed below. A more detail presentation is presented in the Notes to Financial
statements at Note 3.
Outstanding Debt at Year~End
(In thou.ands)
Cenificales ofObligmion
ContraclualObligations
Compensated absences
Revenue lxmds
Less deferred refunding

2010
2009
Total
Activities
Activities
Activities
Governmental
Business-type
2010
Governmental
Business_type
$
20,659 $
1,141 $
21,800 $
16,275 $
1,250 $
1,925
1,925
2,254
658
658
1,004
)7,750
37,750
40,115
(230)
(230)
(255)

'"

Capital Leases
Landfill Closure costs
$

21.658

'"
no
S

4\,618

653

'"

no
S

63276

$

11725

$

470
690
44,524

Total
Activiti",
2009
17,525
2,254
1,004
40,115
(255)

'"

$

690
62,249

Most of the City's debt is insured, thus holding an "A2" credit rating from Moody's and "A" from
Fitch's. The City does not have a rating from Standard and Poor's.

ECONOMIC FACTORS, NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET, AND RATES
The City's economy during the fiscal year remained stable and the outlook for the future remains
optimistic especially with continuing business inquiries in the restaurant, convenience (food and
gas) and beverage establishments.
Employment at the five major employers remains stable when compared to 2009. The major
employers are the school district, major discount store, Tribal casino, the only one in the state of
Texas, regional super market and a medical center. These employers employ 4,331 of a 13,500
work force in the City. The school district during the year completed construction of a new athletic
& entertainment complex.
Unemployment continued to rise to the current 15.0% for 2010 as compared to 12.0% for 2009.
For 2011 it is expected to rise to 17. Our traditional seasonal population remains as part of our
work force.
For 2009-2010 City management considered all factors that might enter into the budget process,
including national, state, regional and local economy.
The City's property tax rate increased to $.4058 per $100 valuation for tax year 2011. The City
expects to generate approximately $3 million in property tax revenues for its General Fund and
$1.06 million for its Debt Service.
The City expects to transfer $5.4 million from proprietary funds to finance its governmental funds.

II

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a

general overview of the City's finances, If you have questions about this report or need any
additional information, contact Mrs. Gloria Barrientos, F;nance Director at:
Mailing address:

City of Eagle Pass
100 South Monroe Street
Eagle Pass, Texas, 78852

Telephone:

830-773-1111, Extension 7401

Fax:

830-773-9170,

E-mail:

gbarrientos@eaglepasstx.us

Or visit our Website: www.eaglepasstx.lls
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Basic Financial Statements

EXHIBIT A-I

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010
Primary Government

Business
Type
Activities

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncolleetibles)
Due from Other Governments
Internal Balances
Due from Others
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Deferred Charges
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings, net
Improvements other than Buildings, nel
Machinery and Equipment, net
Capital Assets, net
Water Rights, net
Construction in Progress
Other Assets

$

8,828,846
6,689,441

$

635,036
20,541
43,780
61,453

S

11,959,273
9,154,695
2,837,078
102,575
172,775
70,098
22,782

2,311,849

10,613,333

12,925,182

1,377,029

1,976,137
66,040
27,654,855
1,667,835
12,508,154
7,106,971
95,407,593
735,808

3,353,166
66,040
27,654,855
1,667,835
32,959,563
7,106,971
108,402,820
735,808

53,414,611

165,776,905

219,191,516

20,451,409
12,995,227

Total Assets

3,130,427
2,465,254
2,837,078
(635,036)
82,034
128,995
8,645
22,782

Total

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Deferred Revenues
Other Current Liabilities
Payable from Restricted Assets
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year

1,470,931
6,364
(230,190)

5,423,738
1,024,000
154,414
30,000
2,407,995

6,894,669
1,030,364
(75,776)
30,000
2,407,995

1,306,698
20,351,675

987,366
38,511,677

2,294,064
58,863,352

Total Liabilities

22,905,478

48,539,190

71,444,668

13,165,292

105,140,594

118,305,886

5,815,597
395,196

336,962
4,412,336
1,134,304
383,929
339,143
506,653
1,114,687

6,152,559
4,807,532
1,134,304
383,929
339,143
506,653
1,114,687
2,735,966
12,266,189

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Capital Assets
Debt Service
Repairs and Bettennent
Operating Services
Water Rights
Water & Sewer Improvements
Operating and Maintenance
Public Grants
Unrestricted Net Assets
Total Net Assets

2,735,966
8,397,082
$

30,509,133

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3,869,107
$

117,237,715

$

147,746,848

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010
Program Revenues

""""'"

Primary Government:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
General Government
Public Safety
Highway and Streets
Sanitiation
Culture and Recreation
Bond Interest
Fiscal Agent's Fees
Issuance Costs
Capital Outlay
Tolal Governmental Activities:

S

Capital
Grants ar.d
Contributions

814,707 S
1,470,284
313,924
32,931
193,681

295,600
1,181,320

18,616,747

2,825,527

1,618,642

8,613,304
2,184,563
3,375,378
320,201

9,569,624
8,106,221
3,%7,301
68,324

4,670,642

14,493,446

21,711,470

4,868,383

33.1 10,193 $

24,536,997 S

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Water and Sewer System
1mernational Bridge System
Refuse Collection System
Landfill Fund

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

Operating
Gl'1lItts and
Contributions

3,149,578 $
8,826,542
2,726,114
514,664
2,980,037
699,191
1,200
70,000
(350,579)

S

Total Business-Type Activities:

Charges fO£
Services

100,842
40,880

197,741

1,618,642

General Revenues:

Taxes:
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service
Sales Taxes
Occupany Tax
Franchise Tax.es
Penalty and Interest
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted
Miscellaneous Revenue
Investment Earnings
Transfers In (Out)
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net As~ts-Beginning

Net Assets•• Ending

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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S

$

4,868,383

EXHIBIT B-1

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net_"useU
Primary Government
Business-type
Actiyities

Governmental
Activities

$

(2,039,271)
(6,174,938)
(2,412,190)
(380,891)
(2,745.476)
(699.191)
(1.200)
(70.000)
350,579

$

Total

$

(14.172,578)

(14.172,578)

(14,172.578)

,

(2,039,271 )
(6,174,938)
(2,412,190)
(380,891)
(2.745,476)
(699,191)
(1,200)
(70.000)
350,579

5,626,962
5,921,658
591,923
(54,136)

5,626,962
5,921,658
591,923
(54,136)

12.086.407

12,086,407

12.086.407

(2,086.\71)

2,550,210
753,822
3,817,603
654,126
955,516
198,065
(9,240)
(81,833)
35,803
5,373,408

267,400
98,666
(5,373,408)

14,247,480

(5,007.342)

9,240,138

74,902

7,079,065

7,153,%7

30,434,231

110,158,650

140,592,881

30,509.133

$

117,237.715

2.550,210
753,822
3,817,603
654,126
955,516
198,065
(9,240)
185,567
134.469

$

147.746,848
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EXHIBIT C-I
CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVE~~MENTALFUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,20 I0

T~"

"""'"
F~d

O<h~

Go~'"

F~"

F~"

1,399,012 $
5,833,655
16,422
156,479
(9,389)
522,991
814,021

2,808,223
5,833,655
16,422
794,642
(47,679)
3,096,938
1,830,086
2,199,192
20,541
43,780
61,453

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenls
Investments· Current
Interest Receivable· investments
Taxes Receivable
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit)
Receivables (Net)
Intergovernmental Receivables
Due from Other Funds
Due from Others
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
TOtal Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Wages and Salaries Payable
Inlergovemmental Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Others
Deferred Revenues

S

638,163
(38,290)
2,573,947
1,016,065
2,199,192

20,541
43,780
61,453
2,311,849
$

7,903,521 S

S

587,428 S
401,989
6,364

11,065,581

2,311 ,849
S

18,969,102

199,870 S
103,500

178,144
2,039,884

255,493

787,298
505,489
6,364
1,564,156
178,144
2,295,377

3,213,809

2,123,019

5,336,828

395,196
5,815,597

395,196
5,815,597
43,780
61,453

2,735,966

2,735,966

(4,197)

4,584,479
(4,197)

8,942,562

13,632,274

1,564,156

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Reserved For:
Debt Service
Capital Assets
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Unreserved Designated For:
Special Revenue Fund
Unreserved and Undesignated:
Reponed in the General Fund
Reponed in the Special Revenue Fund

43,780
61,453

4,584,479

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

1,409,211 S

4,689,712

$

7,903,521 S

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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11,065,581

S

18,969,102

EXHlBlT C·2
CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERf\.fMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

s

13,632,274

The City uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
dental self-insurance to appropriate functions in other governmental funds. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are not included in the fund
financial statement but are included in the governmental activities column in the
statement of net assets. The net effect of this consolidation is to Increase net assets.

186,968

Capital assets used in governmental activities are llot current financial resources and
therefore are not reported in fund financial statements. They are reported in the
governmental activites column in the StaLement of Net Assets. At the beginning of
the year, the cost of these assets was $61,033,068 and the accumulated depreciation
was $25,972,488 including construction-in-progress.This effect increases net assets
by $35,060,580.

17,335,082

In addition, long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period, and, therefore are nOI reponed as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. Long term liabilities at the beginning of the year had the effect of
decreasing net assets by $17,725,498.
The net effect of including the beginning balances for capital assets (net of
depreciation) and long-term debt in the governmental activities is to increase net
assets by $17,335,082.
Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures
in the fund financial statements,but they should be shown as increases in capital
assets and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements.
The City also had bond proceeds which are included. Tlie net effect of including the
20 I capital outlays, debt principal payments and bond proceeds is to decrease net
assets.

(2,443,435)

The 20 I0 depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net effect
of the current year's depreciation is to decrease net assets.

(1,726,355)

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to conven from the
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue - 52,525,567, and recognizing the revenue
related to municipal court· $999,032. The net effect of these recognitions is to
increase net assets $3,524,599.

3,524,599

°

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

30,509,133

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, At\1D CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

T"""

"""'"

Governmental

F~d

REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property Taxes
General Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Tax
Other Taxes
Penalty and Interest on Taxes
Licenses and Penn its
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
Charges for Services
Fines
Special Assessments
Investment Earnings
Rents and Royalties
Contributions & Donations from Private Sources
Olher Revenue

S

2,853,426 $:
3,817,603
955,516

809,376 $

653,571
30,834

55'
167,231
275,355
365,201
1,622,066
502,509

1,242,624
109,707
1,965
313,924
31,479

4,075
60,911
950

627

3,662,802
3,817,603
955,516
654,126
198,065
275,355
1,607,825
1,731,773
504,474
313,924
35,554
60,911
1,577

_ _--".:0'0"',9"'49 _ _---""','.:::34 _ _--"~'9. ..
,O"'"8J
10,746,]47

],202,241

13,948,588

2,538
613,301
477,582
308,498
1,174,053

3,005,471
8,271,788
2,226,830
554,937
2,899,466

516,000
699,191
1,200
70,000

516,000
699,191
1,200
70,000

_ _--'-41"9,,,'",0' _ _-,-71"9,,,3,,-,'9

1,138,861

Toral Revenues
EXPE DITURES:
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
HiRhway and Streets
Sanitiation
Culture and Recreation
Debl Service:
Bond Principal
Bond Interest
Fiscal Agent's Fees
Issuance Costs
Capital Outlay:
Capital Outlay

F~"

---'---'-

3,002,933
7,658,487
1,749,248
246,439
1,725,413

14,802,022

4,581,722

19,383,744

(4,055,675)

(1,379,481)

(5,435,156)

4,900,000
694,026

(170,580)

4,900,000
6,149,613
14,108
(746,205)

4,894,070

5,423,446

10,311,516

838,395

4,043,%5

4,882,360

Fund Balance - <ktober I (Beginning)

3,851,317

4,898,597

8,749,914

Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending)

4,689,712 $

8,942,562 S

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiencv) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures
OTHER FINANC,NG SOURCES (USES),
Capital-related Debt Issued (Regular Bonds)
Transfers In
Other Resources
Transfers Out (Use)

5,455,587
14,108
(575,625)

Toral Other Financing Sources (Uses)
et Change in Fund Balances

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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13,632,274

EXHIBIT C-3

EXHIBIT C-4
CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNME TAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES I FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$

4,882,360

The City uses some internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities
primarily to the governmental funds. The net income (loss) of these internal service
funds are reported with governmental activities. The net effect of this consolidation is
to increase net assets.

7,036

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in
the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets
and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. Also,
proceeds from bonds were recorded. The net effect of removing the 201 0 capital
outlays and debt principal payments is to decrease net assets.

(2,443,435)

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not
require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's
depreciation is to decrease net assets.

(1,726,355)

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the
revenue earned from the current year's tax levy, eliminating interfund transactions,
recognize expenses of prior year, and adjusting for fines. The net effect of these
reclassifications and recognitions is to (decrease) net assets by ($644,704).

(644,704)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

$

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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74,902

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 20 I0

Major Fund-

Major Fund-

Water Works &

International
Bridge System

Sewer System

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Assets - Current:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable-Net of Uncollectible Allowance
Due from Other Governments
Due from Other Funds
Due from Others
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Deferred Charges

$

1,518,826 $
8,568,589
1,490,552
2,579,929

361,263
2,044,744

2,043
128,995
8,645

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings
Improvements other than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation - Capital Assets
Water Rights
Amortization of Water Rights
Construction in Progress
Deferred Charges

14,286,891

2,416,695

1,009,170

864,236
66,040
27,654,855
1,667,835

39,715,608
(21,618,024)
8,494,998
(1,388,027)
95,372,593
529,032

(7,748,412)

35,000
206,776

Total Noncurrent Assets

122,115,350

22,746,330

Total Assets

136,402,241

25,163,025

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 0-1 (Com'd)

Major Fund·
Refuse Collec
System

$

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Funds

839,788 S

410,550 S

444,601

530,101
257,[49
480

79,991

22,782
1,387,162

Total
Enterprise

Internal

Funds

Service Fund

3,130,427 S

186,968

10,613,333
2,465,254
2,837,078
480
82,034
128,995
8,645
22,782

1,198,280

19,289,028

102,731

3,076,253
(1,263,850)

1,225,496
(878,917)

1,976,137
66,040
27,654,855
1,667,835
44,017,357
(31,509,203)
8,494,998
(1,388,027)
95,407,593
735,808

1,812,403

449,310

147,123,393

3,199,565

[,647,590

166,412,421

186,968

186,968
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010
Busincss-Type Activitics-

Major Fund-

Major Fund-

Water Works &

International

Sewer System

Bridge System

L1ABILlTIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Wages and Salaries Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Claims and Judgments Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Others
Deferred Revenue
Bonds Payable - Current:
Revenue Bonds Payable
General Obligation Bonds Payable
Other Bonds Payable
Capital Leases Payable - Current
Other Current Liabilities
Payable from Restricted Assets - Current:
Accrued lnterest Payable
Revenue Bond Payable
Compensated Absences
Customer Deposits
Total Current Liabilities
NonCurrent Liabilities:
Bonds Payable - Non-Current:
General Obligation Bonds Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable
Other Bonds Payable
Unamortized Premiums (Discounts) on Bonds
Capital Leases Payable - Noncurrent
Other Noncurrent Liabilities

144,415
1,300,000
90,742
23,031

60,368
789,439

7,877,230

1,593,862

1,026,000
25,590,000

9,492,014

(1,075)

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

26,614,925

9,492,014

Total Liabilities

34,492,155

11,085,876

93,025,211

12,114,315
336,962
789,439
534,414
383,929

NET ASSETS
Investments in Capital Assets, Net of Debt
Restricted for Truck Route
Restricted for Debt Service
Restricted for Repair & Bettennent
Restricted for Operating Services
Restricted for Water Rights
Restricted for Water & Sewer Improvements
Restricted for Operating & Maintenance
Unrestricted Net Assets

3,622,897
599,890
339,143
506,653
1,114,687
2,701,605
$

Total Net Assets

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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J(}j ,91 0,086

(81,910)
$

14,077,149

EXHJBIT D-I

Major FundRefuse CoHee
System

157,509
18,672
29,140

Nonmajor
Enterprise
Funds

6,74\

3,261
18,047

47,811

6,921

18,538

333,492

Total
Enterprise

Internal

Funds

Service Fund

3,633,196
65,291
293,437
492,997
1,024,000
635,516

938,817
154,414

350,561
115,000
350,000

]50,000
171,805

171,805

30,000

30,000
204,78]
2,089,439
90,742

23,031
793,475

398,462

10,663,029

1,026,000
35,082,014
1,575,000

1,575,000

689,875

(1,075)
139,863
689,875

1,714,863

689,875

38,511,677

2,508,338

1,088,337

49,174,706

(448,242)

449,310

105,140,594

139,863

336,962
4,412,336

1,134.304
383,929
339,143

1,139,469

I

691,227 S

109,943
559,253 $

506,653
1,114,687
3,869,107

186,968

117,237,715 S

J 86,968
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AI\TD CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010
Major FundWater Works &
Sewer System

OPERATING REVENUES,
Charges for Watcr Scrvices
Charges for Sewerage Service
Charges for Sanitation Service
Toll Charges
Health - Charges for Services
Other Revenue

$

Major Fund •
Imcmational
Bridge Systcm

5,954,016 $
3,615,608
8,106,221
209,514

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATI G EXPENSES:
Personnel Services· Salaries and Wages
Personnel Services· Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional & Technical Services
Purchased Property Services
Other Operating Expenses
Supplies
Depreciation
Amortization of Premiums or Discounts - Bonds
Amortization of Water Rights
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

. ON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)'
Bond Issuance Cost Amortized
Investment Earnings
Sale of Hay
Rentals & Miscellaneous
Interest Expense· Non-Operating

9,779,138

8,106,221

2,507,464
1,154,889
307,724
1,368,379
357,154
1,279,969
957,006
38,383

555,962
251,939

191,022
8,161,990

---,---c:-:-=

1,617,148

6,469,353

49,092
165,130
28,091
586,654

86,002
43,983

Total Non-operating Revenue (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Contributions & Transfers
Capital Contributions
Non-Operating Transfer In
Transfers Out

1,636,868

(48,307)
11,205

(451,314)

13,903
(499,388)

(321,329)

(522,587)

1,295,819

5,946,766

4,670,642
(175,000)

(5,089,587)

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - October I (Beginning)

5,791,461
96,118,625

857,179
13,219,970

Total Net Assets· September 30 (Ending)

$ 101,910,086 $

14,077,149

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-2

25

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

8ul;iness-Type AclJYrtin;

Major Fund-

Major Fund-

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from User Charges
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Received from Other Collections
Cash Payments for Suppliers
Net Cash Provided by Openlting
Activities

$

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Increase(Decrease) in Third Party Collections
Operating Transfer Out
Transfer In
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital
Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital & Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition of Capital Assets
Capital Contributed by Other Funds
Construction of Capital Assets
Payment of Debt
Interest Paid on Outstanding Debt
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital &
Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities;
Proceeds from Sale of Hay
Interest on Investments
Net Cash Provided by Investing
Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year:

l

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year:

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
26

Water Worb &

lnlemallonal

~Systcm

Bridge Sysu:m

(3,745.164)

8,106,221
(813,326)
11,973
(264,557)

3,260,021

7,040,311

282,125
(175,000)

(5,034,310)

107,125

(5,034,310)

(554,214)
4,825,196
(5,444,907)
(1,379,000)
(459,053)

(19,629)

(1,09l,ooo)
(j04,869)

(3,011.978)

(1,619,498)

43,983
86,002

11,204

129,985

11,204

485,153
9,602,262

397,707
2,008,300

9,415,489
(2,410,304)

10,087,415

$

S

2,406,007

EXHIBIT D-) (Cont'd)

Govcmmerul
ACliviUQ -

Major Fund -

Nonmajor

T()(al

Refuse CoHee
System

Enterprise

Enterprise
Funds

S

3,901,430
(457,847)

Funds

S

68,324
214,157

S

(2,105,932)

(I06,359)

21,491,464
(3,467,320)
11,973
(6,222,012)

1,337,651

176,122

11,814,105

36,787

(30,000)

52,179

166,743
(5,370,310)
52,179

52,179

(5,151,388)

(30,000)

(115,382)
(I61,OOO)
(276,382)

(39,362)
158,153
(488,1l9)
(122,525)
(650,006)

158,153

$

93,157

('6,370)

(613,20')
4,983,349
(5,444,907)
(2,962,119)
(1,086,447)
(5,123,329)

1,459

43,983
98,665

249

1,459

142,648

249

386,454
24,096

1,682,036
12,061,724

7,036
179,932

410,550

S 13,743,760 S

412,722
427,066

S

Internal
Service Fund

839,788

S

186,968
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Major- Fund-

Major Fund-

ReconciljaliQn of Operating Income fLoss) to Net Cash
Provided By Operating AClivjties;
Operating Income (Loss):

Waler Works &

Inlerr.a1lOna]

Sewer System

Bridge Systan

S

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Effect of Increases and Decreases in Current
Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in Receivables
Decrease (increase) in lnvemories
Decrease (increase) in Due from Others
Increase (decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (decrease) in Wages & Salaries Payable
l'ncrease (decrease) in Deferred Revenue
Increase (decrease) in Compensated Absences
Increase (decrease) in Customer Deposits
Increase (decrease) in Arbitage Payable
Increase(decrease) in Accruals
Increase(decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Increase(decrease) in Due to Others
Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities

1,617,148

S

957,006
229,405

6,469,353

586,654

(373,644)
2.709
(765)
(22,244)

1,102,070
(87,530)
(8,484)
3,518
19.680
(201,857)

(5,425)
(1,167)
13,905

S

The nOtes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3,260,021

S

7,040,311

EXHIBIT 0-3

Governmental
Activities -

Major Fund-

Nonmajor

Total

Refuse CoHee
System

Enterprise

Enterprise

Internal

Funds

Service Fund

$

714,448

Funds

$

527,200
7,194

(251,877)

$

S

28,451

318,668
29,613

1,337,651

$

176,122

36,787

I

36,787

(439,515)
2,709
28,351
1,181,328
(86,820)
(8,484)
3,518
19,680
(201,857)
(5,425)
317,501
71,969

(65,871)
(480)
6,046
(467)

$

2,145,479
236,599

74,619

29,596
95,456
1,177

8,549,072

$

11,814,105
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EXHlBlT E-I
CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Agency

Funds
ASSETS

S

Cash and Cash Equivalents

832,088

64,046

Accounts Receivable-Net of Uncollectible Allowance

7,866

Due from Other Governments

593

Due from Fiduciary Funds

2,104

Due from Others
Total Assets

$

906,697

S

436,144

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

593

Due to Fiduciary Funds

469,960

Due to Others
Total Liabilities

S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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906,697

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE I:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAJ'IT ACCOUl'>'TING POLICIES

Reporting Entitv

The City of Eagle Pass, Texas (the "CiTY") is a mWlicipal corporation governed
by an elected mayor and a five-member Council. The accompanying financial

statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for local governmental entities. Private-sector
standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their business-like activities and Enterprise Funds, subject to this
same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described
below.
Related Organization

The City Council appoints members to the Board of Directors for the Eagle Pass
Housing Authority. However, the City's accountability for this entity does not
extend beyond making appointments to the Board of Directors and the
coordination and approval of strategic plans.
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include three components: (I) government-wide
financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to financial
statements the govenunent-wide fmancial statements reporl information on all
non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.
Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements
and provides an analytical overview of the City's fmancial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets reflects both short-tenn and long-tenn assets and
liabilities. In the Government-wide statement of net assets governmental activities
are reported separately from business-type activities. Governmental activities are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues whereas business-type
activities are nonnally supponed by fees and charges for services. Long-tenn
assets, such as capital assets, infrastructure assets, and long-term obligations are
reported with the assets and liabilities of the governmental activity. The
components of net assets, previously shown as fund balances, are presented in
three separate components: (1) Invested Capital Assets, net of related debt, (2)
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE I:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

restricted, and (3) Unrestricted. Interfund receivables and payables between
governmental and business-type activities are eliminated in the governmentalwide Statement of Assets, which minimizes the duplicating of assets and
liabilities within govenunental and business-type activities.

Statement of Activities reflects both gross and net cost format. The net cost (by
function or business-type activity) is usually covered by general revenues
(property taxes, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, etc.) Direct (gross)
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues, such as
licenses and permits, fines, fees and fire and ambulance services to others, and
operating and capital grants. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenue, must be directly associated
with the function of business-type activity. This presentation allows users to
determine which functions are self-supporting, and which rely on the tax base in
order to complete City requirements. Internal Service fund balances, whether
positive or negative, have been eliminated against expenses and program revenues
shown in the governmental and business-type activities of the Statement of
Activities.
A reconciliation detailing the change in net assets between the goverrunent-wide
financial statements and fund financial statements is presented separately for
governmental funds.
Separate financial statements are provided for goverrunental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds, even", though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual Enterprise Funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.
Measurement
Presentation

Focus,

Basis

of Accounting

and

Financial

Statement

The goverrunent-wide financial statements present information about the City as a
whole. Government-wide financial statements exclude both fiduciary funds and
fiduciary component units. The statement of net assets and statement of activities
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Agency
funds have no measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continned

they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current finandal
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both measurable and available. Revenue is
considered to be available when it is collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenue to be available if collected within 60 days of the
end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incuned, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Property taxes, franchise
taxes, sales taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenue of
the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable
and available only when cash is received by the City.

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets and other debits, liabilities, fund equity and other credits, revenues and
expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to
and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are
to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The City
has three (3) types of funds: (1) Goverrunental Funds, (2) Proprietary Funds, and
(3) Fiduciary Funds. The Fund Financial Statements provide more detail
information about the City's most significant funds, but not on the City as a
whole. Major individual governmental funds and major enterprise funds are
reported separately in the Fund Financial Statements. Non-major funds are
independently presented in the combining statements.
The criteria used to detelmine if a goverrunental or enterprise fund should be
reported as a major fund is as follows:
The total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least ten (10%) of the corresponding total
for all funds of the category or type (that is, total governmental or total enterprise
funds), and total assets and liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of that
individual goverrunental or enterprise fund are at least five (5%) the
corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined. The
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE I:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

following is a brief description of the major governmental funds that are each
presented in a separate column in the fund financial statements:
The General Fund is always presented as major fund and is the only major fund
this year.
The following is a brief description of the major enterprise fWlds that are
presented in a separate column in the fund financial statements:
1. The Water Works System accounts for the operation of the City's
water and sewer system. Financing for its operation is provided by
user fees.

2. The International Bridge System accounts for the operation of the
City's two international bridges that facilitates daily traffic between
the United States and the Republic of Mexico. Financing for its
operation is provided by user fees.
3. The Refuse Collection System accounts for the operation of the City's
refuse collection operation. Financing for its operation provided by
user fees.
Governmental Funds
General Fund - The General Fund· of the City is the primary operating fund, it
accounts for all financial resources of the general government except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue resources (other than major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.
Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest and related costs.
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continned

Capital Project Funds - are used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and purchase of major
equipment (otber than those financed by Proprietary Funds).

Proprietary Funds
Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where
the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation)
of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis should
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
Internal Service Fund - the Internal Service Fund is used to account for the
financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments
of the City, or to other governmental units, on a cost - reimbursement basis. The
City's self-insurance dental program is accounted for in this fund. The fund has
been in existence for less than two years therefore, there is limited historical
information available.
Fiduciarv Funds
Agenc)' Funds - are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee
capacity or as an agent on behalf of others. These include an Escrow, the CDSIHUD, Payroll and Deposits Held Funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature and
do not present results of operations cir have a measurement focus.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City's Enterprise Funds are charges to customers for sales, services and fees for
use of the international bridges, water and sewer service and refuse collection.
Operating expenses for Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets, operating revenue and
expenses.
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continned
For the Year Ended September 30,2010

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continned

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity
Deposits and Investments
The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, government securities and time deposits.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U. S. Treasury,
commercial paper, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, and the State
Treasurer's Investment PooL
Investments for the government, as well as for its component units, are reported at
fair value.

Receivables and Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other
funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other
funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual
balances outstanding betwecn the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the govemment-wide financial statements as "internal
balances. "

Advances between funds, as reportcd in the fund financial statements, are offset
by a fund balance reserve account in applicable govemmental funds to indicate
that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available
financial resources.
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectible. Trade accounts receivable in excess of \ 80 days comprise the trade
accounts receivable allowance for uncollectible. The property tax receivable
allowance is equal to 6 percent of outstanding property taxes at September 30,
2010.
Property taxes are levied on October 1 and attach as an enforceablc lien on
propelty as of January 1. Statements are mailed on October 1, or as soon
thereafter as possible, and are due upon receipt. All unpaid taxes become
delinquent ifnot paid before February 1 of the following year.
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Coutinued

Inventories and Prepaid Items
All inventories are valued using the average cost method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than
when purchased.
Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consist of bond reserve and sinking funds on various revenue
bonds and projects designated by the City Council and lor bond requirements. The
bond reserve and sinking funds are segregated as required by certain bond
indentures.

Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include propeliy, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets
(e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) and intangible assets are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. The City defines capital assets as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The costs of normal maintenance al)d repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are presented as ConstructionIn-Progress and are capitalized when substantially completed.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following useful lives:
Assets

Years

Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
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20-50
5-50
5-20
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Compensated Absences
City - The City's policy is to accrue annual leave pay as it is earned. Annual
leave may be accumulated up to the limits as stated in the personnel policies. Any
leave not taken in the following year of service will be lost. The long-term portion
of proprietary fund compensated absences is recorded in the proprietary funds and
paid from there; for governmental fund types, the matured current portion of the
liability resulting from the accrual of these compensated absences is recorded in
the respective governmental fund and reported in the fund financial statements,
while the entire vested liability is reported in the governmental-wide financials.
Watenvorks System - The Waterworks System's policy is to accumulate
employees' unused vacation and sick leave to a maximum of twenty (20) and
thirty (30) days, respectively. Vacation is earned at a rate of (10) working days
per year for up to 10 years of service, fifteen (15) days for up to twenty, and
twenty (20) days for over twenty years of service. Sick leave is earned at a rate of
twelve (12) days per year of service. Employees are entitled to receive
compensation for the accumulated unused vacation and sick leave upon
retirement. Employees who resign in good standing are paid the accumulated
unused vacation and sick leave.
International Bridge System - It is the policy of the Bridge System to accrue
two weeks of annual leave for employees who have provided 1 to 10 years of
service. Employees with more than 10 years of service accrue 3 weeks of annual
leave, and four weeks in over 20 years of service as stated in the City's policy.
Since employees are required to take vacation leave each year, the financial
statements do not reflect liability for accrued annual leave at year-end. Employees
may accrue up to 30 days of sick leave. A terminating employee is paid for
accumulated sick leave.
Long-term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-tenn obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are defen'ed and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs arc reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE I:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
prerniwns and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally
restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund
balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Net Assets
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets
invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capita! assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing
used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and adding
back unspent proceeds. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislations adopted
by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws
or regulations of other governments.',
GASH Implementations

During 2010, the City reviewed all applicable GASB Statements effective dming
the fiscal year. The GASB has issued Statement No. 51, "Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets." This statement establishes accounting
and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets including easements,
water rights, timber rights, patents, trademarks, and computer software. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods
beginning after June IS, 2009.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE 2:

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Balance
Sheet and the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets
The govemrnental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund
balance - total governmental funds and net assets - govenunental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of assets. One element of that
reconciliation explains, ''Cun"ent year capital outlays and long·term debt principal
payments are expenditures in the fund financial statements, but they should be
shown as increases in capital assets and reductions in long-term debt in the
govcmment-wide financial statements." The detail of ($2,443,435) difference is
as follows.
Capital Outlays
Bond Proceeds
Principal payment of debt
Compensated absences
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance in
government funds to arrive at Net Assets in
governmental activities

NOTE 3:

$

1,489,440
(4,900,000)
620,878
346,247

$

(2,443,435)

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in
the financial statements.
I. At least 30 days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the City
Manager is required to submit to the City Council a proposed
budget for the fiscal year beginning on the following October 1.
The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them.
2. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE 3:

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY - Continned

3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of
an ordinance or alternatively if no final action is enacted by City
Council it is deemed adopted as submitted by the City Charter.
4. Budgetary preparation and control is exercised at the departmental
level. The City Council is authorized to transfer any unencumbered

appropriation balance from one department to another through
budget amendments. The City Manager is authorized to transfer
budget amounts between line items within a department. During
the, year, the budget if amended was done in accordance with City
charter requirements.
5. The City by charter legally requires an adoption and presentation
of an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, a
Governmental Fund. The budget is prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. All aruma} appropriations lapse at
year-end.
As part of the overall budget process budgets are adopted for the
following Governmental Funds: Recycling Program, Library
Program, Automotive Theft Program Debt Service, HoteVMotel
Tax (Room Tax) Revenue Program, and International Center for
Trade Fund (Civic Center Facility). These are presented in these
financial statements.
The Community Development Program and HIDTA, a Drug
Traffic grant Program are not legally required to adopt a budget.
The grantor imposes a budget for grant purposes.
Budgets are not prepared and are not adopted for the following
Governmental Funds: Texas Rental Rehabilitation, Urban
Development Action Programs, Industrial Expansion Program,
Forfeited Funds, Texas Water Development Program, Local Law
Enforcement Block Grant, FEMA Disaster Grant, Security Fund
Program, Park Dedication Program and Capital Equipment.
As part of the overall budget process, budgets are adopted for the
proprietary fund, however, the City does not require a reporting as
part of the comprehensive annual financial report.
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NOTE 3:

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY - Continued

6. Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed
contracts for goods and services. Encumbrance accounting, under
which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded in order to reserve that
portion of the applicable appropriation, is utilized in the
governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are
reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be
honored during the subsequent year.
NOTE 4:

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

Policies, Legal
Investments

and Contractual Provisions

Governing Deposits and

Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits and Investments
To limit the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party the City requires
counterparties to register the securities in the name of the City and hand them
over to the City or its designated agent. This includes securities in securities
lending transactions. All of the securities are in the City's name and held by the
City or its agent.
The City's policy regarding types of deposits allowed and collateral requirements
is as follows: deposits and investments of the City and its component units funds,
other than direct purchases of United States TreasUlY instruments or its agencies,
is secured by pledged collateral. Collateralization levels of City and component
unit funds are pledged at l02 percent of market value principal and accrued
interest on the deposits and investments less an amount insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or Federal Savings and Loan Insurance
Corporation (FSLIC). Acceptable collateral, exclusive of FDIC and FSLIC
coverage, is (1) A bond, certificate of indebtedness, or Treasury Note of the
United States, or other evidence of indebtedness of the United States, its agencies
or instrumentalities, (2) Obligations, the principal and interest on which, are
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas, or (3) A bond of the
State of Texas or of a county, city or other political subdivision of the State of
Texas rated as investment grade (no less than 'A" or its equivalent) by a
nationally rating agency with a remaining maturity often (10) years or less.
The City is not exposed to custodial credit risk for its deposits as all are covered
by depository insurance and collateral coverage.
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Credit Risk for Deposits and Investments

The City is required by the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, State of
Texas Goverrunent Code to adopt and implement an investment policy. The City
has adopted such a policy. That policy addresses the following areas: safety of
principal and liquidity, portfolio diversification, allowable investments,
acceptable risk levels, expected rates of return, maximum allowable stated
maturity of portfolio investments, maximum average dollar-weighted maturity
allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, investment staff
quality and capabilities and bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit.
State statues and Board policy authorize the City to invest in the following types
of investments meeting criteria and eligibility requirements established by Texas
Government Code 2256: obligations of, or guaranteed by, governmental entities,
certificates of deposit and share celtificates, fully collateralized repurchase
agreements, a securities lending program, bankers acceptance, commercial paper,
no-load money mutual funds and no-load mutual funds, guaranteed investment
contracts as an investment vehicle for bond proceeds and public funds investment
pools.
Policies and Legal and Contractual Provisions Governing Deposits and
Investments

The Public Funds Investment Act also requires the City to have independent
accountants perform procedures related to investments practices as provided by
the Act. The City is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Act
and City policy.
As of September 30, 2010, the City had the following cash:

Cash on hand & in financial institutions
Certificates ofdeposits
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$

11,959,273
12,925,182

$

24,884,455
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Additional policies and contractual provisions governing deposits and investments
or the City are specified below:

Concentration of Credit Risk
To limit the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's investment in a
single issuer, the City limits its investments to a diversified portfolio and limits
investments to those instruments allowed by Texas State law. The City does not
limit investments in a single issuer when they would cause investment risks to be
significantly greater in the governmental and business-type activities, individual
major funds, aggregate non-major funds and fiduciary fund types than they are in
the primary government.

Interest Rate Risk
To limit the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of investments; the City limits its investment portfolio to maturities of one year
and avoidance of over-concentration of assets in specific instruments other than
those stated in ''Credit Risk for Deposits and Investments,"

Net and Account Receivable Balances
Net and account receivable as of year-end are as follows:
Es timnted
Amount

Uncollectible

Net

Governmental:
General Fund
Emergency Medical SelVices
Property Cleaning, Inspections, etc.

$

6,950,874

$

630,921

Miscellaneous
Total General Fund

(5,419,362) $

1,531,512

(140,000)

490,921

(5,559,362)

2,573,947

551,514

551,514

8,133,309

Other Funds
Notes Receivables (UDAG)
Miscellaneous

91,980

91,980

Total
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431,011

431,011

$

522,991

$

$

522,991

$

8,656,300

$

(5,559,362) $

3,096,938
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Water Works
System

Business-type Activities:
$
Customer Charges
Customer Charges· County
Unbillcd Charges
Estimate for Uncollectibles

Refuse

Bridge
System

1,580,782 S

Landfill
System

Collection

$

479,601 S

72, 187 $
469,469

(35,000)

(11,555)

444,601 $

530,101 $

169,931
(260,161)

$

1,490,552 $

$

Total
Receivables

2,132,570
469,469
169,931
(306,716)
2,465,254

No estimate for uncollectible has been established for the note receivables since
they are secured by a second lien on the affected property. Liens are also placed
on properties cleaned by the City for the public welfare that have not been paid.
Governmental Receivables

State

Federal

Maverick
County

Total

Governmental:
General FW1d

$ 157,009 $

317,318 $

Other Funds

791,629

3,076

$ 948,638 $

320,394 $

561,054 $ 1,830,086

Enterprise:
Water and Sewer System $
Landfill System

$ 2,579,929 $

$ 2,579,929
257,149
257,149

$

$ 2,579,929 $

257,149 $ 2,837,078

Total

541,738 $ 1,016,065
19,316

814,021

Amounts due from Federal and State government receivables are principally for
requested payments on grant funding.
Receivables from the County are for fire protection services and use of the landfill
transactions on which an outstanding balance remains at year end and is not
expected to be paid within one year.
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Interfund Receivable and Payable Balances

The following summary of Interfund receivables and payables for the City as of
September 30,2010:
Due From Other
Funds

Governmnetal Fund
Major Fund:
General Fund

$

2,199,192

Due To Other
Funds

$

Non-Major Funds
Special Revenue Funds:
Community Development Block Grant Fund
Urban Development Action Program
Recycling Program
Library
Federal Forfeited Program
State Preventive Auto Theft Program
High Intensity Drug Tramc Areas Program
Security Fund
Civic Center Facility Program
Total Special Revenue funds

332,721
668
64,419
1,083
1,555
175,288
575,646
28,399
14,092
1,193,871

Capital Projects Fund:
Capital Improvement

370,285

Total Governmnetal Fund,

2,199,192

1,564,156

Enterprise Fund:
Major Funds
International Bridge System
Refuse Collection System

283,486
18,538

Non-Major Funds
LandfilOperations

480

333,492

Total Enterprise Funds

480

635,5 J 6

Agency Funds:
Deposits Held
Total Agency Funds

593
593

593
593

$
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2,200,265

$

2,200,265

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30,2010

NOTE 4:

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

The outstanding balances at year end result principally from short-term loans
between funds which are the result of timing differences between transaction
being recorded and payments by the funds.
These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) inter-fund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2)
transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between
funds are made.
Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows:
Beginning
10/112009

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction In Progress
Total assets not being depreciated

$

1,377,029
11,867,697
13,244,726

Capital assets, beillg depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other thall Buildings
Equipment
Inrrastmcture
Total assets being depreciated

2,700,317
13,120,602
11,288,756
20,678,666
47;788,341

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Improvements other than Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being deprcciated, net

Increases

$

Ending
9130/2010

Decreases

$

$

1,127,530
1,127,530

1,377,029
12,995,227
14,372,256

361,910

2,700,317
13,181,102
11,590,166
20,678,666
48,150,251

2,700,317
5,550,677
6,(126,(127
11,695,466
25,972,487

261,372
948,016
516,967
1,726,355

2,700,317
5,812,049
6,974,043
12,212,433
27,698,842

21,815,854

(1,364,445)

20,451,409

60,500
301,410

Government activities capital assets, net

$

35,060,580

$

(236,915)

$

$

34,823,665

Summary:
Capital Assets, net
Constructioll-ln-Progress

$

23,192,883
11,867,697
35,060,580

$

(1,364,445)
1,127,530
(236,915)

$

$

$

$

21,828,438
12,995,227
34,823,665

$
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Balance
10/1/2009

Balance
Increases

Decreases

10/1/2010

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
$
Construction work in progress
Total assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Water and Sewer System

Brk:lge System

1,976,137 $

$

$

89,962,686
91,938,823

5,444,907
5,444,907

47,656,392
29,369,101

554,214

48,210,606

19,629

29,388,730

97,383,730

1,225,496

1,225,496

Landfill Site

Waste Management System
Total assets being depreciated

1,976,137
95,407,593

3,036,891

39,362

3,076,253

81,287,880

613,205

81,901,085

Less: accumulated depreciation
Water and Sewer System
Bridge System
Landfill Site
Waste Management System
Total accumulated depreciation

21,858,023
7,161,758
804,298
736,650
30,560,729

1,148,028
586,654

23,006,051
7,748,412

74,619

878,917

527,200
2,336,501

1,263,850
32,897,230

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

50,727,151

(1,723,296)

49,003,855

Total Capital Assets
Capital Assets, net
Construetion-l 0- Progress

$

142,665,974 $

$

52,703,288 $
89,962,686

$

142,665,974 S

3,721,611

$_~...;._

(1,723,296) $

$

146,387,585

$

50,979,992
95,407,593

5,444,907
3,721,611

$_~_ _

$

146,387,585

The City in previous years was donated approximately 16.16 acres of land on
which an International Trade Center CITC) building was constructed. The gift
warranty deed imposes on the City the requirement that the land is to be used
primarily for public or governmental purposes and if the propelty ceases to be
used for the stated purposes it automatically reverts to the donor.
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Additionally, the City in previous years applied, was offered and accepted a
$1,400,000 U.S. Department of Commerce (USDOC) Economic Development
Administration grant for public works and economic development facilities. The
funds were used for approximately twenty-five per·cent of construction cost of
the lTC. The grant imposes a requirement on the City that if at any time the
property on which USDOC funds were used is disposed it must be compensated
for the federal share of the value of the property, plus costs and interest.
Current year depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the
primary govcI1U11cnt as follows:

Govermental Activities:
General Government
Public Sarety
Highways & Streets
Sanitation
Cube & Recreation

Depreciation Charged
Business-Type Activities:
Total Depreciaion

$

241,690
656,015
604,224
51,791
172,635

$

1,726,355

$ 2,336,501
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Transfers

Transfers In

Governmental Funds:
General Fund

$

Non-Major Funds:
Special Revenue Funds
Recycling Program
HoteVMotel Program
Library

5,455,587 $

Transfers Out

575,625

202,416
170,580
321,030
523,446

Debt Service Fund
Interest and Sinking

170,580

170,580

Intenk'1! Service Fund

Dental Selflnsurance

30,000

Total Governmental Ftmds

6,149,613

Enterprise Funds:
Bridge System
Water Works System
Refuse Collection System
Non-Major FW1d
Total Enterprise Fllllds

776,205

5,089,587
175,000
161,000

Total Transfers

$

52,179
52,179

5,425,587

6,201,792 $

6,201,792

Transfers from the Enterprise Funds were made to subsidized Governmental
operations as is permitted by ordinance. Transfers from Governmental Funds
principally the General Fund were made to fund Governmental operations
principally Special Revenue Funds. Receipts collected by other funds that were
budget for debt service were transferred from the collecting fund to the fund that
made the debt payments.
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Debt
Changes in Long-Telm Debt are as follows:
Balance.
Balance,

Payments or
Expenditures

Issues or
Additions

OelGb", 1, 2009

September 30,
2010

Dlle Wilhi"

One Year

Government,,1 Actlvil":.,-

Bonds_
Certificates of obligation

$

1,004,739

Compensated absences

Capital lease
Governmental Activities _Long_
Tenn Liabilities

16,275,(X)(I $

4,'JOO,OOO $
814,798

445,759

$

17,725,498 $

$

40,115,000

20,659,000 $

697,562

1,161,045

658,492

500,000

104,878

340,881

109,136

516,000 $

5,714,798 1;

1,781,923 S

$

2,365,000 $

Business-Type Activities
Bonds'
Revenue

,

37,750,000 $

2,440,000

Certifkates of obligation

1,250,000

l09,OOO

1,141,000

J 15,000

Contractual obligations

2,255,000

330,000

1,925,lXlO

350,lXlO

43,620,000

2,804,000

40,816,000

2,905,000

Deferred amount on refunding

(254,933)

25,872

43,365,067

Capital Leases

469,788

Landfill ClosurefPost Closure

689,504-

(229,061)

25,872

2,829,872

40,586,939

2,930,872

158,120

311,6GS

171,805

719,875

30,000

30,371

Business-Type Activities - LongTennLiabilities

44,524,359 $
$ _ _.::"''''~~

51

30,371

$

2,987,992 $

41,618,482 $

3,132,677
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The following is a summary of changes in debt by issue for the year ended
September 30,2010;

lssue

Certificate of 0

Ori2;,,·1

Malurity

[n(crut

Losue

Date

R.les

bli~"tion:

,

Balonce

Balanc.

0".

October I,

Sept. 30.

wi.hin

2009

2010

One Yea,-

Deluions

Additions

,

,

Series 1998

389,000

2019

4.54_5.89

Series 2002

1,815,000

2012

4.0-4.55

675,000

215,000

Serie.2003

6,945,000

2024

2,0_5.0

6,195,000

$cries 2005

3,969,000

2025

4,05

3,220,000

Series 2007

7,080,000

2025

4,55

6,860,000

$crie.lOIO

4,900,000

2030

4.25

250,000

4,900,000

S

231,000

,

20,000

460,000

225,000

215,000

5,980,000

235,000

41,000

3.179,000

29,000

260,000

6,600,000

275,000

4,900,000

158,~62

750,000

21,350,000

942,~62

705,000

220,000

I 0,000

95,000
8~,OOO

4,900,000
17,200,000

TOlal Co Bonds

19,000

Re''''nue Bonds:
Series 1992

1,62~,000

2003

S,10-6.8~

910,000

20~,OOO

Series 1998

1,810,000

2018

3,6~_~.05

1,000,000

90,000

Series 1998

19,635,000

2018

3.8·5.5

4,360,000

85,000

4,275,000

Series 2003A

7,4~5,OOO

2032

.050-3,700

3,40~,OOO

~,OOO

3,400,000

5,000

Serics2003B

11,545,000

2034

10,005,000

385,000

9,620,000

38~,000

Series 2003C

8,385,000

440,000

7,945,000

44~,OOO

140,000

10,000

130,000

10,000

4,565,000

5,000

4,560,000

~,OOO

75,000

5,000

70,000

5,000

1,010,000

6,585,000

l,05~,OOO

40,440,000

2,240,000

38,200,000

2,310,000

2,255,000

330,000

1,925,000

350,000

2,255,000

330,000

1,925,000

350,000

3,320,000

61,475,000

3,602,562

10,110,000

2024

.0200_3,200

Series 2004

1,880,000

2022

2,5-5,9

Serics 2004A

5,400,000

2022

Series 2004B

700,000

2023

.6-4.05

8,620,000

2018

3,95

Serics 2006

To'al Revenue Bonds

Conlroclunl

Obli~alion.
2,2~5,OOO

2015

Tolal ConlraClual

4.85

Obli~a,ion.

B"nd

T"lal Bonds

Less; Series 20D2 & 2006 deferred aon"U11t on refundin8

TOlal Debl

7.595,000,

<}

59,895,000

4.900,000

(254,933)

$ 59,640,067
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25,872

$4,900,000

S 3,345,872

(229.061)

$61,245,939

25,872

53,628,434
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Annual requirements to retire debt obligations as indicated:
Certificate of Obligation Bonds
Governmental Activities
Year ending
September
30,
2011

Principal

S

Business-Type Activities

Interest

697,562

926,188

S

Principal

$

245,000

Interest

28,518

$

2012

758,185

853,192

256,000

16,973

2013

1,036,267

815,878

23,000

10,386

2014

1,079,745

772,336

24,000

9,043

2015

1,075,883

771,360

26,000

7,601

2016-2020

5,942,396

3,306,109

117,000

14,100

2021-2025

7,269,240

1,709,023

2,799,722

345,549

2026-2030

,

20,659,000

$

9,499,635

$

691,000

S

86,621

Revenue Bonds
Cbvernmental Activities

Business- Type Act ivitics

Year ending
September
30,

2011

Principal
$

Principal

Interest

$

$

2,310,000

,

Interest
867,653

2012

2,400,000

787,608

2013

2,725,000

695,106

2014

2,500,000

602,822

2015

2,580,000

519,485

2016-2020

10,800,000

1,477,687

2021-2025

6,375,000

622,479

2026-2030

4,615,000

216,406

2031-2035

3,895,000

37,741

S

,

$
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$

5,826,987
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Contractual Obligation Bonds
Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activit ies

Year ending
September

30,
2011

$

$

Interest

Principal

Interest

Principal

$

350,000

$

84,875

2012

365,000

2013

385,000

49,349

2014

405,000

30,191

2015

420,000

10,185

$

S

$

1,925,000

67,536

$

242,136

New Debt (Business-Type Activities)
During the year the City issued $4,900,000 Combination Tax and Limited Pledge
Revenue Certifications of Obligation, Series 2010. Interest rate for these
contractual obligations is 5.79%. The obligations are payable beginning March 1,
2011 on interest payments and March 1,2011 on principal payments in varying
installments from $78,610 to $406,592 through March 1, 2030, Proceeds were
used for construction and the financing of the following projects: J) street paving
and construction, 2) stonn drainage, curb and gutter improvements, 3)
construction of a detention pond, and 4) the payment of professional services
related to the construction.

Debt Limitation
The Constitution of the State of Texas provides that ad valorem taxes levied by
the City for debt service and maintenance and operation purposes shall not exceed
$2.50 for each $100 of assessed valuation of taxable property. There is no
limitation within the $2.50 rate for interest and sinking fund purposes; however, it
is the policy of the Attorney General of the State of Texas to prohibit the issuance
of debt by a city if such issuance produces debt service requirements that exceed
the amount that can be paid from the $1.50 tax rate calculated at 90.0%
collections.
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Debt Compliance

There are a number of limitations and restnctIons contained in the bond
indentures for the Certificates of Obligation, Tax Notes and Revenue Bonds and
City ordinances authorizing the bonds indentures. The City is substantially in
compliance with all significant debt limitations and restrictions.
Accrued Compensated Absences

For the governmental activities, any claims and judgments arc generally
liquidated by the General Fund. Compensated absences are generally liquidated
by the General Fund, and the Refuse Collection and Landfill Funds (both
enterprise funds).
Capital Leases

The City leases property and equipment from others. Leased propelty having
elements of ownership are recorded in the government-wide financial statements.
The related obligations, in amounts equal to the present value of minimum lease
payments payable during the remaining tenn of the leases, are also recorded in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital lease payments are recorded as
expenditures when matured in the government fund financial statements.
The City has entered into various lease purchase agreements for the acquisition of
machinery and equipment in conjunction with its Fire and Public Works
Departments (Governmental) and the Enterprise Waste Management - Refuse
leases for accounting purposes and has been recorded at the present value of their
future minimum lease payments as of inception.
For Governmental Activities the amount capitalized in prior year is $547,970.
Lease payments for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 totaled $104,878.
Payments, including interest are at 3.97%
For Business-Type Activities the amount capitalized in prior years is $807,909.
Lease payments for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 totaled $158,120.
Payments, including interest are at 5.15%.

55

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

NOTE 4:

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

At September 30, 2010, the City had future minimum lease payments under
capital leases with a remaining term in excess of one year as follows:
Business
Type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Year End
September 30,
$

2011

2012

122,976

S

184,309

138,235

122,976
J 17,310

2013
Future minimum lease payments

363,262

322,544

less: Interest

(22,38 t)

(10,876)

Present value of future minimum lease payments
less: Current portion
Capital1easc, net of current portion

$

340,881

311.668

(109,136)

(171,805)

231,745

$

139,863

Risk Management
The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the
government carries commercial insurance. There are several pending lawsuits in
which the City is involved. The City Attorney estimates that the potential claim
against the City not covered by insufance and resulting from such litigation would
not materially affect the financial statements of the City.
Other Information
Risk Management
Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount
for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IB1\TRs). The result of the
process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends on
many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, damage
awards (including frequency and amount of payouts), and economic and social
trends. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of
such factors. The estimate of the claims and other amounts for incremental claim
adjustment expenses related to specific claims and other claim adjustment
expenses regardless of whether allocated to specific claims. Estimated recoveries,
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for example from salvage or subrogation, are another component of the claims
liability estimate.
At September 30,2010, the City was insured for the following risk exposures:
General Liability
Building and Contents
Boiler and Machinery

Errors and Omissions
Mobile Equipment
Employee Health and Life

Law Enforcement
Workers Compensation
Crime Fidelity & Forgery

The Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool provides insurance
coverage for all major risk exposures listed above. Also, the City provides its
current employees with medical and life insurance. Dependent coverage is
available at the employees' expense. Medical and life coverage is through the
Texas Municipal League Group Benefits Risk Pool, a separate branch of the
Intergovernmental Risk Pool.
The City's insurance coverage for all its risk exposure has remained at the same
level since the last increase approximately five years ago. No claims or
settlements have exceeded its insurance coverage for the last three years, or for
any other year.
Through an intergovemmentallocal agreement, the City is a member of the above
mentioned public entity risk pools. These pools are not intended to operate as an
insurance company, but rather are i.ntended to be the contracting mechanism by
which each member of the pool provides self-insurance workers' compensation
benefits to its employees, liability coverage for itself and its employees in their
official capacity and coverage for its property. The pool will defend and pay on
behalf of the member any valid claim less appropriate deductibles and co·
insurance, up to the stop-loss limit. The City, as member, agrees to make prompt
notices of claims, premium payments, and cooperation in implementing loss
control measures or managed care controls as may be recommended by the pool.
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Contingent Liabilities
Grants
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability
of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be
disallowed by the grantor CaImat be determined at this time, although the
government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
Litigation
There are currently several claims and lawsuits pending against the City. It is the
opinion of the City Attorney and City Staff that there is no pending litigation
against the City that, if decided against the City, would have a material adverse
effect upon the operations of the City or that would exceed the contingency
amounts set aside for such purpose.

Arbitrage
The City has issued certain tax-exempt obligations that are subject to Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) arbitrage regulations. Noncompliance with these
regulations, which pertain to the utilization and investment proceeds, can result in
penalties, including the loss of the t~x-exempt status of the applicable obligations
retroactive to the date of original issuance. In addition, the IRS requires that
interest income eamed on proceeds in excess of the arbitrage rate on applicable
obligations be rebated to the federal government. The City monitors its bond
proceeds in relation to arbitrage regulations, and "arbitrage rebate" is estimated
and recorded in these financial statements when susceptible to accrual. Arbitrage
rebates of $0 were accrued at September 30,2010.

Pension Plan Description
The City provides pension benefits for all of its fulltime employees through a
nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), one of 827 administered by TrvIRS,
an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system.
The plan provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the options
available in the governing statutes of Tl\1RS.
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TNIRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplemental infonnation (RSI) in
TMRS; the report also provides detail explanations of the contributions benefits
and actuarial methods and assumptions used by TMR.S. The report may be
obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, Texas 78714-9153 or by
calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is available on the TMRS website at
wW.tmrS.com.

Benefits
Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with
interest, and the City-financed monetary credits, with interest. At the date the plan
began, the City granted monetary credits for service rendered before the plan
began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what would have been
contributed by the employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan.
Monetary credits for service since the plan began are a percent (100%, 150%, or
200%) of the employee's accumulated contributions. In addition, the City has
granted, annually, another type of monetary credit referred to as an updated
service credit which is a theoretical amount which, when added to the employee's
accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since the pian
began, would be the total monetary credits and employee contributions
accumulated with interest if the current employee contribution rate and City
matching percent had always been in existence and if the employee's salary had
always been the average of his salary in the last three years that are one year
before the effective date. At retiren1ent, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of
the employee's accumulated contributions with interest and the employerfinanced monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity.
The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, with the
options available in the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the
City were as follows:
Members can retire at certain ages, based on the years of service with the City.
The Service Retirement Eligibilities for the City are: 5 yrs/age 60, 20 yrs/any age
for the plan years 2009 and 2010.
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Contributions
Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually determines the City
contribution rate. The contribution rate for the City's employees is 5.0% and the
matching percent was 9.86% for the calendar year 2010. This rate consists of the
normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate, both of
which are calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The nomml
cost contribution rate finances the currently accruing monetary credits due to the
City matching percent, which are the obligation of the City as of an employee's
retirement date, not at the time the employee's contributions are made. The
normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially determined percent of payroll
necessary to satisfy the obligation of the City to each employee at the time his/her
retirement becomes effective. The prior service contribution rate amortizes the
unfunded (over funded) actuarial liability (asset) over the remainder of the plan's
25-year amortization period. Both the normal and prior service contribution rates
include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits such as
Updated Service Credits and Annuity increases. The City contributes to the
TMRS plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City
make contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in
advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial
valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes
into effect (i.e. December 31, 2009 valuation is effective for rates begilU1ing
January 2010). The funding progress of the plan for the fiscal year ended
September 30,2010 and the two pre~eding fiscal years are as follows:
Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding
(I)

(2)

(3)

PI'OgI'CSS

(4)

(5)

(6)

Covered
Payroll

UAAL as a
Percentage of
Covered Payroll
(4Y(5)

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

Actuarial Value
of Assets

Actuarial Accrued
Liability (AAL)

FWldcd
Ratio
(l)/{2)

Unfunded AAL
(VAAL) (2)-(1)

1213112007

24,023,990

30,754,549

78.1%

6,730,559

12,117,138

55.5%

12131/2008

23,872,840

30,447,241

78.4%

6,574,401

11,991,258

54.8%

12/31/2009

24,812,410

32,089,604

77.3%

7,277,194

12,179,329

59.8%
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The City's annual pension cost, the percentage of annual pension cost contributed
to the plan, and the net pension obligation for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2010 and the two preceding fiscal years are as follows:
Annual Pension Cost
Annual Required
Percent of ARC
Fiscal Year Ended Contribution (ARC)
Contribution
1213112007

856,154

100%

12131/2008

856,154

100%

12/31/2009

856,] 54

100%

Net Pension
Obligation

System-Wide Actuarial Assumptions
ActuriaJ Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method

Projected Unit Credit
Level Percent of Payroll
28 years - Closed Period
10 Year Smooth Market

Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increases
Includes Inflation At
Cost of Living Adjustments

7.5%
Varies by age & service
3.0%
2.1 % (3% CPI)

In addition to the system-wide assumptions above, the following actuarial
assumptions were used for the City: Payroll growth assumption = 3%;
Withdrawal rates for male/female = Mid-Low/Mid-Low.
Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Cost
The City at year-end operated one active landfill site. State and federal laws and
regulations require the City place a final cover on its landfill when closed and
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty
years (30) after closure. In addition to operating expenses related to current
activities of the landfill, an expense provision and related liability are being
recognized based on the landfill capacity used as of each statement of net assets
date. These future closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or
after the date the landfill no longer accepts waste. The $719,875 reported as
landfill closure and post-closure care liability at September 30, 2010, represents
the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 41.57% of the
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estimated capacity of the landfill. The current change recognized in this fiscal
year is $30,371. The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure
and post-closure care of$I,731,457 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled.
The City estimates the useful life as of September 30, 2010 to approximate thirty
years (30). The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and post closure
care is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and
services required to close, monitor and maintain the landfill were acquired as of
September 30, 2010. However, the actual cost of closure and post closure care
may change due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws
and regulations.
The City is required under the provisions of the Texas Administrative Code to
provide financial assurance to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
related to the closure of municipal solid waste facilities. As such financial
assurance is required to ensure that funds are available, when needed, to meet
costs associated with the closure of the City's landfill. The City has satisfied the
financial assurances of the State.
Construction Contracts
The Waterworks System is committed under various contracts for completion of
construction or acquisition of capital assets totaling approximately $643,197 as of
September 30, 2010.
Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations
Departmental expenditures exceeded appropriations as follows:
Appropriations

General Fund
Highway and Streets $

1,742,594

$

187,125

CapnalOutlay
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Excess

Expenditures

$ 1,749,248
$

419,502

$

6,654

$ 232,377
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Deficit Net Assets and Fund Balances
The following funds have deficit net assets or fund balances:

Governmental
Automotive theft program

$4,197

The City intends to fund all Governmental funds by reduction of future cost or
transfers from the General Fund.
Miscellaneous Revenue
In the Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities miscellaneous revenue
of $35,803 is principally comprised of: Insurance Proceeds - $3,290 and various
miscellaneous items - $32,513.
Subsequent Event

On Octoher 13,2010 the City issued $6,760,000 Comhination Tax and Limited
Pledge Revenue Celtificates of Obligation, Series 2010 at a variable interest rate
from 2.0% to 4%. The $6,760,000 proceeds are to be used to provide funds to
refund certain outstanding obligations of the city and pay the costs of issuing the
bonds.
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010
Actual Amounts
(GAAP BASIS)

Budgeted Amounts
Original
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property Taxes
General Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Tax
Other Taxes
Penalty and Interest on Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
Charges for Services
Fines
Investment Earnings
Rents and Royalties
Contributions & Donations from Private Sources
Other Revenue

,

2,742,784
3,920,442
926,821

,

2,742,784
3,920,442
926,821

,

Variance With
Final Budget
Positive or
(Negative)

$

182,308
272,110
164,749
U71,770
545,123
18,603
71,372

182,308
272,110
164,749
1,171,770
545,123
18,603
71,372

2,853,426
3,817,603
955,516
555
167,231
275,355
365,201
1,622,066
502,509
4,075
60,911

83,768

83,768

120,949

110,642
(102,839)
28,695
555
(15,077)
3,245
200,452
450,296
(42,614)
(14,528)
(10,461)
950
37,181

10,099,850

10,099,850

10,746,347

646,497

3,134,746
8,081,233
1,742,594
259,517
1,767,807

3,134,746
8,081,233
1,742594
259,517
1,767,807

3,002,933
7,658,487
1,749,248
246,439
1,725,413

131,813
422,746
(6,654)
13,078
42,394

187,125

187,125

419,502

(232,377)

15, t 73,022

15) 73,022

14,802,022

371,000

(5,073,172)

(5,073,172)

(4,055,675)

1,017,497

5,866,918
10,818
(575,625)

5,866,918
10,818
(575,625)

5,455,587
14,108
(575,625)

(411,331)
3,290

5,302,11 t

5,302,111

4,894,070

(408,041)

228,939
3,851,317

228,939
3,851,317

838,395
3,851,317

609,456

950

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Highway and Sireets
Sanitialion
Culture and Recreation
Capital Outlay:
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Other Resources
Transfers Out (Use)
Tota! Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - October I (Beginning)
Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending)

Final

EXHIBIT G-l

,

4,080,256
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,

4,080,256

S

4,689,712

S

609,456
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Exhibit G·2

REQUIRED SUPPLEI\IENTARY INFORMATION - (UNAUDITED)
PENSION SCHEDULE
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
LAST THREE FISCAL n:AI{S

Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress

(I)
Actuarial
Valuation
Date

(2)

(3)

(4)

Unfunded AAL
(VAAL) (2)-(1)

(6)

Covered
Payroll

UAALasa
Percentage of
Covered Payroll
(3)/(5)

Actuarial Value
of Assets

Actuarial Accrued
Liability (AAL)

1213112007

24,023,990

30,754,549

6,730,559

78.1%

12,117,138

55.5%

12/31/2008

23,872,840

30,447,241

6,574,401

78.4%

11,991,258

54.8%

1213112009

24,812,410

32,089,604

7,277,194

77.3%

12,179,329

59.8%
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Funded Ratio
(1 )/(2)

(5)
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CERTIFIED PUBUC ArJ:nJNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINAi'lCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVEl/!{,'JENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council of
Eagle Pass, Texas
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activItIes, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the
City of Eagle Pass, Texas (the "City") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2010, which
collectively comprise the City'S basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated March 24, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered the City'S internal control over financial

reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
yxpress an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's·internat control over financial reporting.
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal
control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and
therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of
fmdings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct misstatements On a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses. Findings 2010-01 and
2010-02.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's fmancial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and
which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Findings
2010-01 and 2010-02.
We noted certain other matters that we reported to the management of the City in a separate
laner dated March 24, 2011.
City's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. \Ve did not audit the City's response and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, the City
Management, federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

~~;'a!='~L~7) GL.//
Certified Public Accountants
San Antonio, Texas
March 24, 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECf AND MATERlAL EFFECf ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL OR
STATE PROGRA.lVI Al'lD ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WlTH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE OF TEXAS SLNGLE AUDIT
CIRCULAR

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council of
Eagle Pass, Texas
Compliance
We have audited the compliance of City of Eagle Pass, Texas (the "City") with the types of
compliance requirements described in the Us. Office of Management and Budget (OME)
Circular A-I33 Compliance Supplemem and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the City's major federal or state programs for the
year ended September 30, 2010. The City's major federal and state programs are identified in
the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to each of its major federal or state programs is the responsibility of the City's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City'S compliance based on our
audit.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB
<;:ircular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the
State a/Texas Single Audit Circular. Those standards, OMB Circular A-I33 and the State 0/
Texas Single Audit Circular require that we plan and perfom1 the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those
requirements and perfonning such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.
As described in Findings 2010-03 and 2010-04 in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, the City did not comply with requirements regarding Davis Bacon and
Procurement, Suspension and Debarment that are applicable to its Community Development
Block Grant Program. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the
City to comply with the requirements applicable to that program.

68

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the City
complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on each of its major federal or major state programs for the year ended
September 30, 20 I O. The results of our auditing procedures also disclosed other instances of
noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with
OMB Circular A-l33 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of fmdings and
questioned costs as Finding 20 I0-05.
Internal Control Over Compliance
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to federal or state programs. In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered the City's
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal or state programs to detennine the auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State of Texas Single Audit
Circular, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City'S
internal control over compliance.
Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for a limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses
and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and
other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
Qver compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Findings
2010-03 and 2010-04 to be material weaknesses.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit anention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 20 I0-05 to be a significant deficiency.
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The City's responses to the fmdings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City's responses and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council,
Management, federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

e:~:f~a~,~~J ~U--P
Certified Public Accountants
San Antonio, Texas
March 24, 2011
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS
Financial Statement:

Type of auditors' report:

Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

•

Material weakness(es) identified?

•

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Yes

- - No
None

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

_v''----_ Yes

_ _ _ Reported

_-,-v'__ Yes

_ _ _ No

Federal or State Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
•

Yes _ _ _ No

Material weakness(es) identified?

None

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Yes _ _ _ Reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Unqualified - Drinking water Federal
Qualified - CDBG - Federal

Unqualified - Regional WaterState

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 51O(a) of Circular A-133 or the
State of Texas Single Audit Circular?

,/

Yes

--

No

Identification of major federal programs:
CFDA Number(s)

14.228
66.468

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Community Development Block Grant
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
_ _ _ _ yes

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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$ 300,000
v'

No

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
SCIlEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIO ED COSTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

SECTION 1- SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS - Continued

Identification of major state programs:
CFDA Number(s)

Name of State Program or Cluster

None

Regional Water and Wastewater Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
Auditee qualified as low·risk auditee?

_v'

72

Yes

S 300,000

_ _ No

CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Cont;nued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS
Finding 2010-01

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave
Type of Finding: Material Weakness and Noncompliance

Condition and Context:
We noted that the City payroll system has the capability of performing "limitation" checks for
vacation and sick leave hours an employee may accumulate of vacation and sick leave.
However, this feature in the payroll system has not been implemented. As a result, 75 City
employees at September 30 had exceeded the maximum hours of240 hours for sick and 172 City
employees at September 30 had exceeded the maximum 240 hours for vacation leave. This
resulted in an overstatement of $346,248 to the financial statements. An adjustment was made to
reduce the total compensation absences reported. However, until this feature is implemented an
employee who terminate their employment with the City are currently being paid all accrued
vacation and sick as currently reported in the City'S payroll system without regard to the City's
limitation policy, resulting in an overpayment of City funds.
Questioned Costs: $346,248
Effect:
The City'S failure to follow its policy is resulting in overpayments to terminated employees.

Cause:
Lack of enforcement of City's policy.
Recommendation:
We reconunend that the City implement the features within the system to accurately record
vacation and sick leave. We also recommend that until the features within the system are
operational, the City should develop a process to ensure that terminated employees are only paid
the amount allowed by City policy.
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:
We agree with the auditors fmdings and have commenced corrective action; reader is referred to
"Corrective Action Plan" section of this report.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Coo';oued
For the Year Ended September 30,2010

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS - CooHoued
F;nding 2010-02
Payroll
Type of Finding: Material Weakness and Noncompliance

Condition and Context:
During our testing of the payroll files, we noted the following:

•
•

Nineteen out of thirty-seven files tested did not have documentation to support the
effective pay rate paid.
Twenty-six out of thirty-seven files tested were missing Forms 1-9 or the forms were not
properly completed.

Questioned Costs: NA
Effect:
The City's failure to properly document the effective pay rate for each employee could lead to the
incorrect payments to employees. Furthermore, the City's non-compliance with federal
regulations regarding the completion of the Forms 1-9 can result in civil money penalties in the
amount of no less than SI1 0 and no more the $1,100 per violation.
Cause:
Lack of enforcement of City policy's and staff turnover.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the City review its policies regarding completion of pay rate authorizations
and Forms 1-9 and ensure that all human resource staff is aware of the policies. Furthermore, the
City should consider creating a checklist for its personnel department as well as provide
additional training for the department's staff to ensure all requisite employee and personnel
documents are obtained timely and prepared in accordance with its policies and applicable
federal regulations.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:
We agree with the auditors findings and have commenced corrective action; reader is referred to
"Corrective Action Plan" section of this repon.
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SCIlEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Continued

For the Year Ended September 30,2010

SECTION ill - FEDERAL OR STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Finding 2010-03

CFDA Title: Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Number: 14.228

Federal Award Number: Various

Federal Award Year: Various

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Type of Finding: Material Weakness and Noncompliance

Davis Bacon Act
Criteria or Specific Requirement:
According to Title 29 CFR 5.5 (ii) (A) states that "the contractor shall submit weekly payroll for
each week in which any contract work is perfonned", Also. a "Statement of Compliance should
accompany each payroll submitted which includes verifying all employees were paid wages not
less that the established prevailing wage rates set by the Department of Labor (DOL)."
According to Title 29 CFR 5.6 (a) (3) states that «contracting agency is responsible for
conducting investigations" which shall include interviews with employees, which shall be taken
in confidence, and examinations of payroll data and evidence of registration and certification
with respect to apprenticeship and training plans.
Condition:
During our testing of the Davis Bacon requirements, we noted that the City was not perfonning
site visits or reviewing certified payrolls for construction contracts.
Questioned Costs: $422,459

Context:
From the testing of the contracts which occurred during the FYE 9/30/10, we found that twelve
Davis Bacon contracts occurred during the period. We tested all twelve for compliance with
Davis Bacon requirements and found that all twelve did not have site visits were perfonned. In
addition, we noted that no certified payrolls were submined or reviewed by staff for these twelve
Davis Bacon contracts.
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

SECTION III - FEDERAL OR STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTSContinued

Finding 2010-03 - Continued
Effect:
The City's lack of consistency in performing site visits and requiring the submittal of certified
payrolls may cause the City to fail to discover noncompliance by contractors, which could
potentially lead to loss or return of funding.

Cause:
Lack of staff knowledge of Davis Bacon requirements.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the City perform site visits and review of certified payrolls on a consistent
basis and maintain evidence of this monitoring in the files to ensure Davis Bacon requirements
are met. Also, the City should provide additional training to its contract management staff
regarding federal grants management regulations.
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:
We agree with the auditors findings and have commenced corrective action; reader is referred to
"Corrective Action Plan" section of this report.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

SECTION m - FEDERAL OR STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS Continued

Finding 2010-04
CFDA Title: Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Number: 14.228

Federal Award Number: Various

Federal Award Year: Various

Federal Agency: Department of Housing and Urban Development
Type of Finding: Material Weakness and Noncompliance

Procurement and Suspension and Debarment
Criteria or Specific Requirement:
According to Title 48 CFR, Part 15.503 (b) (I) "Within 3 days after the date of contract award,
the contracting officer shall provide written notification to each offeror whose proposal was in
the competitive range but was not selected for award ... " The section goes on to say that the
notice shall include (i) the number of offerors solicited~ (ii) the number of proposals received;
(iii) the name and address of each offeror receiving an award; (iv) the items, quantities, and any
stated unit prices of each award; and (v) in general terms, the reason(s) the offeror's proposal was
not accepted.
According to 2 CFR part 180, states that "Non-federal entities are prohibited from contracting
with or making subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or
whose principals are suspended or debarred." This includes the entity checking the Excluded
Parties List System (EPLS), a certification from the contracting entity or adding a clause or
conditions to the contract.
Condition:
During our testing of the procurement process, the following items were noted:
• Three out of three procurement files did not have evidence of the City notifying
unsuccessful bidders as required.
• One out of three procurement files did not have evidence of compliance with Suspension
and Debarment.

Questioned Costs: $2,880,021
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Continued

For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

SECTION ill - FEDERAL OR STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTSContinued

Finding 2010-04 - Continued

Context:
From the testing of the procurement files which occurred during the FYE 913 Oil 0, we found that
three procurements occurred during the period. We tested these procurements for compliance

and found that all three files did not have evidence of the notice to unsuccessful bidders as
required and two files did not evidence of compliance with Suspension and Debarment.

Effect:
The City's lack of notification to unsuccessful bidders of procurement and compliance with
Suspension and Debarment the outcome may cause the City to be in noncompliance of specific
grant conditions required by the federal and state agencies, which could potentially lead to loss or
return of funding.

Cause:
Failure of staff to follow all requirements for the procurement process and staff turnover.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the City reevaluate their post-award procedures for procurement to ensure
that the procurement process includes notification to unsuccessful bidders and compliance with
Suspension and Debarment and to ensure all procurement and suspension and debarment
elements are met. Also, the City should provide additional training to its contract management
staff regarding federal grants management regulations.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:
We agree with the auditors findings and have commenced corrective action; reader is referred to
"Corrective Action Plan" section of this report.
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SECTION ill - FEDERAL OR STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS Continued
Finding 2010-05
CFDA Title: Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Number: 14.228

Federal Award Number: Various

Federal Award Year: Various

Federal Agency: Department of Housing and Urban Development
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency and Noncompliance

Reporting and Rehabilitation
Criteria or Specific Requirement:
Per the eDBG grant agreement, the City should submit performance reports no later the 20th day
of the month after the end of each calendar quarter.
Per the HUD regulations, according to Title 24 CFR 506(b) (9) (ii) & (iii) "For eacb residential
rehabilitation activity... (ii) A pre-rehabilitation inspection report describing the deficiencies in
each structure to be rehabilitated; and (iii) details and scope of COSO assisted rehabilitation, by
structure" is required to be documented.

Condition:
During our testing of the CDBO requirement for Reporting and Rehabilitation we noted the
following:
• Six out of six performance reports did not have evidence of being submitted in a timely
manner.
• Two out of twelve rehabilitation files did not have evidence of prerehabilitation/reconstruction inspection being conducted.
Questioned Costs: $45,259

Context:
During our testing of COSO Reporting, we noted that the City had submined six performance
reports during the fiscal year ended 9/3011 O. We tested these six for compliance with reporting
requirements and found that all six did not have evidence of being submitted in a timely manner.
During our testing of CDBO Rehabilitation, we noted that the City had twelve rehabilitation
projects during the fiscal year ended 9/30110. We tested these twelve for compliance with
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

SECTION III - FEDERAL OR STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS Continued
Finding 2010-05 - Continned

rehabilitation requirements and found that two of the rehabilitation files did not have evidence of
pre-rehabilitation/reconstruction inspection being conducted.
Effect:
The City's failure to comply with CDBG reporting and rehabilitation requirements may cause the
City to be in noncompliance of specific grant conditions required by the federal and state
agencies, which could potentially lead to loss or return of funding.

Cause:
Failure of staff to follow all requirements for the reporting and rehabilitation and stafftumover.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the City should document the date submitted on all performance reports to
ensure they are complying with the CDBG Reporting requirements regarding the timely
submittal. In addition, we also recommend that the City reevaluate its procedures regarding
perform pre-rehabilitation/reconstruction inspections for all rehabilitation projects and maintain
documentation to ensure all rehabilitation elements are met. Also, the City should provide
additional training to its contract management staff regarding federal grants management
regulations.
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:
We agree with the auditors findings and have commenced corrective action; reader is referred to
"Corrective Action Plan" section of this report.
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCllEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

There were no prior year audit findings.
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CORRECITVE ACTION PLAN
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

Finding 2010-01
Financial Statements
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leaye

Type of Finding: Material Weakness and Noncompliance
We have been looking into the reasons the "limitation" feature was not implemented. However,
Human Resources staff has been instructed to tum on this feature on the payroll software.
Therefore, on the anniversary date of employment of each employee vacation and sick leave
hours will not exceed 240 hours as stated in the personnel policies.
Finding 2010-02
Financial Statements
Payroll
Type of Finding: Material Weakness and

oncompliance

The Assistant City Manager has assumed temporary responsibility for the Human Resources
Department. Human Resources staff has been instructed to inspect all files and properly
dacwnent them for an effective pay rate, 1-9 and other required forms. Currently these files are
being updated
Finding 2010-03
CFDA Title: Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Number: 14.228

Federal Award Number: Various

Federal Award Year: Various

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Type of Finding: Material Weakness and

oncompliance

Davis Bacon Act
City administration has changed the Department Director. The new Director has been instructed
all procedures are to be reviewed and where appropriate will be revised to comply with Davis
Bacon. We have pulled the contracts in question and are attempting to contact the companies to
clear this part of the finding.
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
CORRECfIVE ACTION PLAN - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30,2010

Finding 2010-04
CFDA Title: Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Number: 14.228

Federal Award Number: Various

Federal Award Year: Various

Federal Agency: Department of Housing and Urban Development
Type of Finding: Material Weakness and Noncompliance
Procurement and Suspension and Debarment
City administration has changed the Department Director. The new Director has been instructed
all procedures are to be reviewed and where appropriate revised to notify unsuccessful bidders as
required. Files that did not have evidence of compliance with suspension and debannent are
being inspected and a search is being conducted for this feature.
Finding 2010-05
CFDA Title: Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Nnmber: 14.228

Federal Award Number: Various

Federal Award Year: Various

Federal Agency: Department of Housing and Urban Development
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency and Noncompliance
Reporting and Rehabilitation
City administration has changed the Department Director. The new Director has been instructed
all procedures are to be reviewed and where appropriate revised to have reports submitted on a
timely basis and to produce evidence of inspections of pre-rehabilitation/reconstruction.
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CITY OF EAGLE PASS, TEXAS
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2010

I. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards includes the federal and state
grant activity of the City and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with requirements of OMB Circular A-B3,
Audits of Stares, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State of Texas Single
Audit Circular, which was issued under the authority of the Texas Government Code, Chapter 783,
"Unifonn Grant and Contract Management". These circulars set standards for obtaining consistency
and uniformity among federal and state agencies for the coordinated audit of local governments
expending any federal and state awards.

3. In fiscal year 201 0, there were no federal or state awards provided to subrecipients.
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